

Creating a Network for LAN Enabled Embroidery Machines

COPYRIGHT

© Copyright 2005 Pulse Microsystems Ltd. All rights reserved.

This document and the Pulse Design Spooler software are copyrighted by the developer of the software, Pulse Microsystems Ltd. All rights reserved. US Patent Nos. 5 270 939; 5 343 401; 5 430 658; 5 506 784; 5 510 994; 5 541 847; 5 668 730; 5 771 173; 5 809 921; 6 196 146; 6 216 618; 6 390 005. European Patent Nos. 0545773. Other patents pending.

Information in this document is subject to change without notice.

The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement and/or nondisclosure agreement. The software may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of those agreements. No part of this publication and the software may be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable form without the manufacturer's written permission.

Commercial or industrial use of trademark and copyrighted works (For example, books, paintings, drawings, photos, fanciful characters, and so forth) owned by other companies or persons, for creation of embroidery patterns without permission is illegal and may result in either criminal or civil liability.

Microsoft and Windows[®]2000/XP are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. All other product names are copyrighted and registered trademarks or trade-marks of their respective holders. All computer and software names identified by TM or tm are trademarks of their respective manufacturers.

Table of Contents

Networking a Tajima TFMX Quick Reference	1
Hardware Required	2
Wireless Router	2
Network Cards	3
Ethernet Cables	3
Network Overview	3
Connecting Hardware Components	4
Positioning the Wireless Router	4
Connecting the Wireless Router	4
Connecting LAN Enabled Embroidery Machines and Computers	5
Configuring Your Computer	5
Using a Wireless Network Card	5
Installing Design Spooler	7
Running Design Spooler	8
LAN Machine Licenses	8
Using Design Spooler with Tajima DG/ML by Pulse	9
Design Spooler Settings in Tajima DG/ML by Pulse	9
Design Spooler Location	10
Design Spooler Host	10
Queue Type	10
LAN Machine Support	11
Data Collection Database	11
Template Directory	11
Enabling Networking on Tajima TFMX Embroidery Machines	11
Enabling Networking on Tajima TFGN Embroidery Machines	12
Enabling Networking on Tajima TFKN Embroidery Machines	12
Publishing Designs to a Design Spooler	13
Design Queue	14
Delete	14
Set as First	14
Set as Last	14
Viewing the Machine Status for LAN Enabled Machines	15
Viewing Reports	15
Connecting LAN and Non-LAN Embroidery Machines	16
Troubleshooting	17
Network Setting on the Machine Changes from Yes to No	17
Windows® Firewall	19
Design Spooler Support Mode	21
Event Viewer	22
Using the Ping Command	23

	Networking a Tajima TFMX Quick Reference	
	Embroidery Machine Firmware 1.10 or Later	
Connections	With the power to the embroidery machine off, connect the embroidery	
	machine to an available network jack, router or network hub using	
	standard computer Ethernet cables. The embroidery machine is	
	connected to your network as if it was a computer. Networking the	
	machines requires a DHCP server. DHCP servers are common in many	
	corporate networks. Also, most routers will have DHCP servers built in.	
Installing	During the installation of Tajima DG/ML by Pulse, select Yes to the	
Software	Embroidery Machine Connection dialog. This will install Design	
	Spooler. When connecting to LAN machines only, Design Spooler needs	
	to be installed on a single computer. Other Tajima DG/ML by Pulse	
	computers on your network will not need Design Spooler installed unless	
	they are connecting to Serial or Parallel embroidery machines. Restart	
	Windows® with the security device attached after installation. Design	
	Spooler will start automatically when Windows® starts.	
Firewall	If you are using a firewall, make sure that the Design Spooler application	
	is allowed to access the network.	
Configuring	Select Tools—Configuration—Spooler Settings. Change the LAN	
Software	oftware Machine Support setting to Enabled.	
Configuring	onfiguring Turn on the embroidery machine. After the machine is powered up, pres	
Machine	achine the SET and F3 keys at the same time. Scroll down using the arrow keys	
	to the Network option. Change the setting from No to Yes by rotating	
	the jog dial and press the SET key.	
Sending	Start Tajima DG/ML by Pulse. Open one or more embroidery designs.	
Designs	Select File—Output to Machine. Select the embroidery machines from	
_	the list and press the Send button.	

Creating a Network for LAN Enabled Embroidery Machines

This guide outlines how to set up a basic network for connecting your Tajima LAN enabled embroidery machines and outlines some of the features of Design Spooler. Please see your Tajima DG/ML by Pulse User's guide or Online Help for additional details of Design Spooler. Tajima LAN enabled embroidery machines can connect to a standard computer network using DHCP. Please consult your System Administrator or computer professional if you need assistance configuring your existing network.

Hardware Required

Below is a list of the components required to set up a basic network for your LAN enabled embroidery machines.

Wireless Router

The Wireless Router is used to establish a wireless or wired network. The Wireless Router has a number of components that allow you to quickly set up a network even if you do not plan to use it wirelessly. This device is available from your local computer store. We strongly recommend the model listed below as this device has been tested for use with the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse software. These instructions assume that you are using this type of Wireless Router.

Manufacturer: Linksys Model: WRT54G

This device has a number of features essential for setting up a basic network including:

- Built-in DHCP server. A DHCP server assigns addresses to each device connected to your network. This eliminates the need to have a dedicated server computer to control your network.
- 4 port full-duplex 10/100 switch. Connect up to 4 computers or embroidery machines using an Ethernet cable. Connect network hubs or switches to obtain additional connections.
- Network Router allows you to share your high speed internet connection with all of the computers on your network.

Network Cards

Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations that will be connected to the network will require a network card. This card could be a wired or wireless network card. The router is capable of working with wired or wireless networks.

Ethernet Cables

Standard computer networking cable (CAT 5 cable) can be used to connect LAN enabled embroidery machines and computers to the Router. This cable is available from your local computer store. The Linksys router that is recommended comes with 4 LAN ports to connect computers or embroidery machines. A network hub or switch can be used to add additional ports. Wireless network cards can be used instead of Ethernet cable for the computers in the network. LAN enabled embroidery machines could also be connected wirelessly using an optional Wireless LAN adaptor.

Network Overview

A separate application known as a Design Spooler controls the communication between Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations on your network and LAN enabled embroidery machines. The Tajima DG/ML by Pulse installation will automatically install Design Spooler when the user selects that they will be connecting to an embroidery machine through cable.

When configuring Design Spooler for LAN enabled machines, you need to select one computer on your network to be the LAN Design Spooler. All of your LAN enabled embroidery machines as well as any Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations on your network will exchange information through this computer. You can select which computer will be the LAN Design Spooler from within the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse software. Additional information on configuring Design Spooler will be discussed later in this guide.

The Router is used to establish the communication between the different components of the network. Design information is sent from the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations to the Design Spooler and from the Design Spooler to the embroidery machines through the Router. The Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations and LAN enabled embroidery machines must be connected to the Router either using Ethernet cables or wirelessly.



Connecting Hardware Components

Positioning the Wireless Router

The best place to position the wireless router is usually at the center of your wireless network with line of sight to all wireless components of your network.

Connecting the Wireless Router

Connect the LAN enabled embroidery machines and computers using standard Ethernet cables to the numbered jacks on the wireless router. Wireless network cards could also be used instead of Ethernet cables for the connection from the computer to the wireless router.



Tajima machines can coexist on your business network. If you wish to connect your business network to the Internet, connect an Ethernet cable to the port labeled Internet on the Wireless Router. Connect the other end of the Ethernet cable to your Cable or DSL Broadband Modem.

<u>Note</u>: Tajima machines can be accessed from your internal network only and can not be accessed from the internet.

Connect the AC Power Adaptor to the Wireless Router's power connector and the other end to an electrical outlet. Make sure the power adaptor that is supplied with the Wireless Router is the appropriate voltage for the country for which it is being used. It is recommended to purchase the Wireless Router in the country where it will be used to ensure that the proper power adaptor is supplied. Connecting the incorrect power adaptor could result in damage to the Wireless Router.

Connecting LAN Enabled Embroidery Machines and Computers

Make sure that the embroidery machines and computers are powered off before making any connections. Connect the Ethernet cables from the Wireless Router to the LAN enabled embroidery machines and computers. Wireless network cards can be used to connect computers to your network without Ethernet cables for the computer. The connection for the Ethernet cable is on the back of or inside the operation panel of LAN enabled embroidery machines.

Configuring Your Computer

The Wireless Router should work right out of the box using the default configuration. You will need to make sure that the network card is properly installed and configured for your computer. Many new computer systems come with wired and/or wireless network cards already installed and configured. If you have purchased a network card to install into your computer, refer to the documentation supplied with the network card for installation instructions.

Using a Wireless Network Card

If your computer has a wireless network card installed from the manufacturer, it should be configured for use with your wireless network. If you are adding a wireless network card, see the installation instructions that came with your network card for installation instructions. If you are using a notebook computer, you may need to turn on the wireless network using a switch or key combination on the computer. See your computer's user's manual for more information. Once your network card has been configured, follow the procedure below to access the Wireless Router. The instructions below are for Windows® XP SP2 using the classic interface (in which icons and menus look like previous Windows versions). Instructions for other operating systems may be slightly different.

- 1. Make sure the Wireless Router is turned on.
- 2. Click the Start button and select Settings—Control Panel. Double-click the Network and Dialup Connections icon.
- 3. Double-click the Wireless Network Connection icon.
- 4. Click the View Wireless Connections button. You should see a screen similar to the one below:



If a message "Windows can not configure this wireless connection" is displayed, click the Change Advanced Settings icon and select the Wireless Networks tab. A dialog similar to the one below is displayed.

	ess Network Connection Properties
neral	Wireless Networks Advanced
Use	Windows to configure my wireless network settings
Availa	ble <u>n</u> etworks:
To co abou	nnect to, disconnect from, or find out more information wireless networks in range, click the button below.
	View Wireless Networks
	Move <u>up</u> Move <u>d</u> own
	Move <u>up</u> Move <u>down</u>
Learn	Move up Move down Add Remove Properties about setting up wireless network uration.

Check the box labeled "Use Windows to configure my wireless network settings" and click OK. You should then see linksys on your list of available networks.

- 5. Select linksys from the list of available networks and click the Connect button.
- 6. You will receive a warning that you are connecting to an unsecured network. Click the Connect Anyway button.
- 7. You are now connected to your wireless network and you can close the Wireless Network Connection dialog box.

Installing Design Spooler

During the installation process of Tajima DG/ML by Pulse, you will see the dialog box below.

Tajima DG/ML By Pulse (11.0.2630)		
Embroidery Machine Connection		
	Would this computer be used to send designs to one or more Embroidery Machines through a Cable or LAN connection. ♥ Yes ● No	
Instalishield	< Back Next > Cance	:

If you will be using this computer to connect to LAN enabled embroidery machines, select Yes from the list and click Next to continue. This will install Design Spooler on your computer. If you are only connecting to LAN enabled embroidery machines, you only need to install Design Spooler on one of the computers in your network. Any other Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstations will connect to the Design Spooler computer to communicate with the machines.

You should restart your computer after installing Tajima DG/ML by Pulse to allow Design Spooler to start automatically or you can also manually start Design Spooler. See below for more information.

Note: You must have administrator rights on your local computer to install Tajima DG/ML by Pulse and Design Spooler.

Creating a Network for LAN Enabled Embroidery Machines Copyright 2005 Pulse Microsystems Ltd.

If you are using a firewall on your computer you must allow the Design Spooler application access to your network. If you are using Windows® XP Service Pack 2, Windows Firewall is active by default. When Design Spooler is started for the first time, you will see a message asking if you wish to allow the Design Spooler application similar to the one below:

	To help some fe	protect your compu atures of this progra	ter, Windows Fir m.	ewall has blocked
Do yo	u want to	keep blocking this p	program?	
_	<u>N</u> ame:	DesignSpooler		
	<u>P</u> ublisher	Pulse Microsystem Lto	l.	
		Keep Blocking	<u>U</u> nblock	Ask Me Later
Ulindo	us Eirourall k	as blocked this program		nactions from the
Interne	t or a netwo	ias blocked this program rk. If you recognize the j	program or trust the p	nections from the publisher, you can

You allow this application by selecting Unblock in order for Design Spooler to function.

Running Design Spooler

The Design Spooler is a Windows® service that runs in the background and will start automatically when the computer is restarted. If you wish to manually start or stop Design Spooler, you can do so by selecting Start—All Programs—Tajima—DGML by Pulse—Start Design Spooler or Start—All Programs—Tajima—DGML by Pulse—Stop Design Spooler. You will see a black window which will disappear after a few seconds. Your security device needs to be attached before running Design Spooler. If your security device was not attached when your computer was restarted, you can connect the device and try to start the Design Spooler again.

LAN Machine Licenses

In order to use Tajima DG/ML by Pulse with your LAN enabled embroidery machines, you must obtain a license for each machine. Contact your distributor for more information on LAN machine licenses. When adding additional machine licenses you will be provided with a security device update file from your distributor. This file will update the security device that is connected to the computer running the Design Spooler software allowing access to the LAN enabled embroidery machines. When contacting your distributor to request LAN machine license, please let them know the device number for the computer that you have designated as the Design Spooler for LAN enabled machines.

Using Design Spooler with Tajima DG/ML by Pulse

Once the Design Spooler has been installed and started, any Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstation on your network will be able to communicate with the Tajima LAN enabled embroidery machines by connecting to the Design Spooler. Once connected, you will be able to send designs, view the status of sewing and manage the pool of designs that are available to your LAN enabled machines.

Design Spooler Settings in Tajima DG/ML by Pulse

After the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse software and Design Spooler have been installed, Design Spooler needs to be enabled for LAN embroidery machines. This is done from within the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse software. Follow the steps below to enable LAN embroidery machine support.

- 1. Start Tajima DG/ML by Pulse.
- 2. Select Tools—Configuration—Spooler Settings. The Design Spooler Setting dialog box will be displayed.

Design Spooler Settings	×
Preference	
Design Spooler Location	
Always use the spooler running on local computer.	
Design Spooler Settings	
Design Spooler Host	
localhost:9050	
Queue Туре	
MULTIPLE	
LAN Machine Support	
DISABLED	
Data Collection Database	
C:\Program Files\Common Files\Tajima\DGML By Pt Browse	
Template Directory	
Browse	
OK Cancel Apply	

Below is an explanation of the settings in the Design Spooler Settings dialog:

Design Spooler Location

The Design Spooler Location setting has two values:

Always use the spooler running on local computer— Use this setting if Tajima DG/ML by Pulse is installed on the same computer as Design Spooler. If you have only a single Tajima DG/ML by Pulse computer, this is the normal setting.

Locate all spoolers on the network— If there are more than one Tajima DG/ML by Pulse computers on your network and you wish to communicate with Design Spoolers located on different machines, use this setting. If this value is selected, Tajima DG/ML by Pulse will search for all Design Spoolers running on your network. If no Design Spooler is found, an error message will be displayed. See the troubleshooting section for more information.

Design Spooler Host

If the Design Spooler Location is set to "Locate all spoolers on the network", The Design Spooler Host setting will list all of the Design Spoolers found by the software. You can select from the list the Design Spooler that you wish to configure. If the Design Spooler Location setting is set to "Always use the spooler running on local computer" then there will be only one entry in this list.

Queue Type

The Queue Type setting has two values:

Single— All embroidery machines on your network share the same pool of designs. Once a design is sent, it is available to all of the machines on your network. The Single Queue type is available only if all embroidery machines on our network are either LAN enabled machines or Neo (TEJT) embroidery machines using TBF Bi-Directional Machine Protocol. These machines allow the operator to select a design from the operation panel of the machine. This option will not be available if Design Spooler is configured with any other embroidery machine type.

Multiple— Each embroidery machine has its own queue of designs. You can send designs to selected embroidery machines and manage the list of designs independently.

LAN Machine Support

The LAN Machine Support setting allows you to indicate that the selected Design Spooler will be used to connect to LAN enabled Tajima embroidery machines. *In order to use LAN enabled machines, one computer must be designated as the LAN enabled Design Spooler.*

If you are unable to change the setting to enable LAN machine support, you may have another computer on your network running Design Spooler where LAN machine support is already enabled.

Data Collection Database

The Data Collection Database setting indicates the path of database files used for data collection from the embroidery machines. This is usually set to C:\Program Files\Common Files\Tajima\DGML by Pulse\ReportDB

Template Directory

Template Directory indicates the path containing text template files. These templates are used by Smart LCD (PDA based Pulse software). You must own Smart LCD software to use this feature. This setting can only be changed for the local spooler.

Enabling Networking on Tajima TFMX Embroidery Machines

LAN connectivity is supported in TFMX machines starting with firmware version 1.10. The firmware version number is displayed when the machine is started. Contact your distributor to obtain the latest version of the machine firmware if you have a TFMX machine with a firmware version less than 1.10.

To enable LAN support on a TFMX machine, follow the steps below:

- 1. Make sure your embroidery machine is powered off before connecting any cables.
- 2. Connect your embroidery machine to your network using standard network cable. You can connect your machines to a hub our router as you would a computer.
- Make sure that Design Spooler is started on your Tajima DG/ML by Pulse computer and that the LAN machine support is enabled in Tools— Configuration—Spooler Settings. Design Spooler is usually started automatically when Windows® starts. You can also start Design Spooler by selecting Start— Programs—Tajima—DG/ML by Pulse—Start Design Spooler.
- 4. Turn on the embroidery machine.
- 5. After the machine is powered up, press the SET and F3 keys at the same time.

6. Scroll down using the arrow keys to the Network option. Change the setting from No to Yes by rotating the jog dial and press the SET key.

<u>Note</u>: If the Network setting changes back to No after a few seconds, the machine is unable to locate the Design Spooler. Make sure the Design Spooler is running and try again. See the troubleshooting section for more information.

Enabling Networking on Tajima TFGN Embroidery Machines

There are two different types of LCD operation panels on TFGN embroidery machines. Older TFGN models are Windows® CE based and do not have a LAN network jack. These machines can only communicate through the serial port.

Newer TFGN models are Linux based and do support LAN connection. These machines have a LAN network jack on the board in the operation panel. LAN support is available in the following firmware versions:

CPU: Version 4.00C or later. Panel: Version 5.00L or later.

Contact your distributor if you require a newer version of firmware for your embroidery machine. Your distributor should also have additional information on enabling LAN networking and downloading designs to these machines.

Enabling Networking on Tajima TFKN Embroidery Machines

LAN support is available for TFKN embroidery machines in the following firmware versions:

CPU: Version 2.00C or later. Panel: Version 5.00L or later.

Contact your distributor if you require a newer version of firmware for your embroidery machine. Your distributor should also have additional information on enabling LAN networking and downloading designs to these machines.

Publishing Designs to a Design Spooler

The way designs are sent to Tajima LAN enabled embroidery machines is different than traditional machines. Instead of designs being sent to the machine one at a time, a number of designs can be made available to specific LAN enabled machines or all of the LAN enabled embroidery machines on your network. The process of making designs available to machines is called Publishing. Operators at the embroidery machines can select from a list of designs that have been published.

After the Design Spooler has been started and configured for LAN machine support, you can publish a design or a set of designs. Follow the steps below to make designs available to your LAN enabled embroidery machines.

- 1. Open one or multiple designs in Tajima DG/ML by Pulse.
- 2. Select File—Output to Machine. You will see the following.

Output to Machine:		X
Designs to Output: □	Embroidery Machines:	Send Queue View Advanced Close
Add more designs	Download Count:	

- 3. Make sure the designs that you would like to publish to your machines are selected in the left hand side of the dialog and the machines that you would like to publish the designs are selected in the right hand side of the dialog.
- 4. Click Send to publish the design. You will see a confirmation or an error message depending upon whether a design was published successfully.

Notes: In addition to selecting File—Output to Machine, you can also output a design by selecting the Output to Machine icon ¹⁴⁷. The Output to Machine icon behaves differently than selecting File—Output to Machine. The icon is meant to be a quick way to send the current design to a machine. If only one machine is configured, selecting the icon will send the design in the current window to the machine without displaying the Output to Machine dialog. File—Output to Machine will always display the Output to Machine dialog.

You can not publish a design that has the same name as a design that is already in the design queue for a selected machine. An error message will be displayed if you try to publish a design that already exists in the queue. If you wish to send a new design with the same name, you must delete the existing design first. See below for more information.

Design Queue

When you send a design to LAN enabled embroidery machines, the design is sent to a design queue. You can view the queue of designs from the operation panel of LAN enabled machines. A single design queue can be used for all LAN enabled machines or separate queues can be used allowing for a separate set of designs for each machine. The Queue Type setting in Tools—Configuration—Spooler Settings allows you to select the type of queue you would like to use.

The Design Queue Manager within Tajima DG/ML by Pulse allows you to manage your queue of designs, including the ability to delete and reorder designs in a queue. You can open the Design Queue Manager by selecting File—Design Queue, selecting the Design Queue icon 🛱, or by selecting Queue View from the Output to Machine dialog.

The Design Queue Manager displays the queue for each machine. You can reorder the designs in the queue by clicking on the icon of the design and dragging. This will change the order that the designs are displayed on the embroidery machine. Right clicking on a design displays a menu with the following options:

<u>Delete</u>

Deletes the selected design from the design queue.

<u>Set as First</u>

Moves the selected design to the first position in the design queue.

<u>Set as Last</u>

Moves the selected design to the last position in the design queue.

Note:

Deleting the currently sewing design from the queue will make the design unavailable to Machine Status and Data Collection. You will not be able to see the icon of the design in Machine Status if you delete the design that is currently sewing from the design queue.

Viewing the Machine Status for LAN Enabled Machines

Machine Status allows you to view the status of your embroidery machines on your network in real time. You are able to view the current sewing design as well as other information regarding the state of the embroidery machines on your network. Follow the steps below to view the status of your machines.



Select File—Machine Status. You should see the following:

If all your machines are not on the list then click on "Update Machine List" in order to update the list of available machines.

Viewing Reports

You can View Reports on the production of your embroidery machines by selecting Tools—View Reports from within Tajima DG/ML by Pulse. After selecting View Reports, you will see the dialog similar to the one below:



Select the name of the Design Spooler or Machine that you would like to view. You can then select the report type and date range for the selected report. For more information on the reporting features, please see the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse User's Guide or Online Help.

Connecting LAN and Non-LAN Embroidery Machines

In Edition Xi and later versions, Design Spooler is used to control both LAN and Non-LAN based embroidery machines. One of the advantages of this approach is that you output designs to both LAN and Non-LAN machines in a similar way. Embroidery shops that have a mixture of newer LAN enabled Tajima models together with older models that communicate with serial cables will find that the procedure for outputting and managing designs is very similar no matter what machine type they are using.

Non-LAN machines can take advantage of the Design Queue. Multiple designs can be sent to the queue for the machine and designs can be downloaded one at a time in the order that is specified in the queue.

For Non-LAN embroidery machines, Design Spooler must be installed on each computer where machines will be connected. This is done by selecting Yes to the Embroidery Machine Connection question during the install of Tajima DG/ML by Pulse. The illustration below describes the connection for a single computer connected to both LAN and Serial based embroidery machines.



If several computers are connected to a network of both LAN and Non-LAN based embroidery machines, one computer must be designated as the Design Spooler for LAN enabled machines. Other design spoolers on the network must have LAN support disabled (this is the default option). All LAN based machines are controlled from one Design Spooler per network. See the section, "Design Spooler Settings in Tajima DG/ML by Pulse" in this document for more information. The illustration below describes the connection for multiple Tajima DG/ML by Pulse computers connected to both LAN and Serial based embroidery machines.



Each Tajima DG/ML by Pulse workstation comes with licenses to connect to 2 serial based embroidery machines at least. Licenses to add additional serial or LAN based embroidery machines are available from your distributor.

Troubleshooting

Here are some tips that can help you troubleshoot problems when connecting LAN enabled embroidery machines to your network.

Network Setting on the Machine Changes from Yes to No

If the Network setting on the embroidery machine changes from Yes to No after a few seconds then the embroidery machine is not able to find the design spooler on the network. Check the following items in order to resolve this problem.

- 1. Make sure that the design spooler is running and that the computer running Design Spooler is connected to your network. The Design Spooler service usually will start automatically when Windows starts. Your security device must be connected in order for Design Spooler to start. To verify that Design Spooler is starting correctly, you may want to start Design Spooler in Support Mode. See below for more information on Support Mode.
- 2. Make sure your embroidery machine is properly connected to your network and that your network is using a router or DHCP Server. See your System Administrator or computer technician for details.

- 3. Check to see that one computer on your network is running Design Spooler that is enabled for LAN machine support. See the section "Design Spooler Settings in Tajima DG/ML by Pulse" earlier in this document for information on how to enable LAN machine support.
- 4. If your computer or embroidery machine is behind a firewall, you must grant the DesignSpooler.exe application access to your network. Design Spooler uses TCP Port 9050 and UDP Port 4564. See your System Administrator or computer technician for details. If you are using Windows® XP SP2, Windows® firewall is on by default. See below for information on checking Windows® firewall settings.
- 5. If two or more network cards are installed into the computer running Design Spooler or the computer has a built in wireless network card, make sure that only one network card is enabled. If more than one network card is enabled, Design Spooler will not know which card to bind with. Design Spooler can not communicate on a computer where the network cards are bridged.
- 6. Verify that your computer is able to communicate with your router or DHCP server by using the Windows® Ping command. See below for more information.
- 7. Make sure you have enough network machine licenses on your security device. A network machine license is required for each machine on your network and can be purchased from your distributor. To verify the number of network machine licenses you have, start the Tajima DG/ML by Pulse software on the computer running Design Spooler. Next select Tools—Update Security Device. You should see a dialog box similar to the one below:

Update Security Device			(
Update Security Device Update file: Connected device: Device DE11091-2 (2d11 2e6c) fife Expity date 2005/7/28 License for Editor Plus Express Reporting option Pulse Design Spooler 1 Network Machine licenses This device (355) contains the update code for this version. Licensed fonts: 1 2 4 5 7 8 9 10 11 14 15 18		Browse Update Reset date]]
2021 27 30 31 33 35 36 39 40 41 48 49 56 57 58 60 63 64 68 69 72 74 78 89 09 4 96 99 100 101 103 105 106 116 117 121 100 101 103 License verifies.	<	Examine Cancel	

This screen will display the number of network machine licenses that you have. In the example above, the security device is programmed for 1 network machine license. If you do not see any information about network machine licenses on your system, you may not have any network licenses. Contact your distributor for information on obtaining additional network machine licenses. 8. Design Spooler has the ability to bind with only one network card. If two or more network cards are connected on the same computer, Design Spooler does not have the ability to select which network card to use. This would cause a problem if your computer is accessing two different networks or routers. To check to see if two or more network cards are connected, select Start—Control Panel—Network Connections. You should see a screen similar to the following:



Check to make sure that the network adaptor that is used to connect to the router network where the embroidery machine is located is the only network adaptor connected. In the image above, two network adaptors are connected. To disable one of the network adaptors, right click on the network adaptors and select Disable. Make sure you are not disabling the adaptor that is used to connect to your embroidery machines. If only one network adaptor is connected, then no changes need to be made.

Windows® Firewall

Windows® XP has built in firewall protection to prevent access to your computer by unauthorized programs. Windows® Firewall is enabled by default starting in Windows® XP Service Pack 2. When Design Spooler is started for the first time, you will see a message asking if you wish to allow the Design Spooler application. You allow this application in order for Design Spooler to function. If you are using Windows® XP Service Pack 2, you can check to see if the Design Spooler application has been allowed to access your network by following the procedure below.

- 1. Select Start—Control Panel—Network Connections
- 2. Right click on the enabled network card and select Properties
- 3. Select the Advanced tab
- 4. Click the Settings button next to Windows Firewall. You will see the dialog below:



- 5. If your Windows® Firewall is set to Off, then you can skip the rest of the steps as Windows® Firewall is not blocking the Design Spooler Application. You may however, have other firewalls installed from different manufacturers that could block the Design Spooler application. See your System Administrator or firewall documentation for information on allowing the Design Spooler Application.
- 6. If your Windows Firewall is set to On, make sure the option "Don't allow exceptions" is not checked. This option must not be checked if you wish to allow the Design Spooler to access the network.
- 7. Select the Exceptions tab. You should see the dialog below:

🖗 Windows Firewall
General Exceptions Advanced
Windows Firewall is blocking incoming network connections, except for the programs and services selected below. Adding exceptions allows some programs to work better but might increase your security risk.
Programs and Services:
Name
✓ DesignSpooler
File and Printer Sharing
Remote Assistance
Remote Desktop
UPnP Framework
Add Program Add Port. Edit Delete
☑ Display a notification when Windows Firewall blocks a program
What are the risks of allowing exceptions?
OK Cancel

8. Make sure that DesignSpooler is listed and has a check in the box next to the name. If Design Spooler is not listed, Click OK to close the Windows Firewall dialog box. Next try stopping and restarting Design Spooler in Support Mode by selecting Start—Program Files—Tajima—DGML by Pulse—Stop Design Spooler and then select Start—Program Files—Tajima—DGML by Pulse—Support—Start Design Spooler (Support Mode). A black screen should be displayed with logging information from design spooler. A dialog should be displayed after a few seconds asking if you wish to keep blocking the Design Spooler application from accessing the network. Select Unblock. Next close the Design Spooler in Support mode by clicking the X in the right hand corner of the window. Restart Design Spooler by selecting, Start—Program Files—Tajima—DGML by Pulse—Start Design Spooler. A black screen will be displayed after a few seconds and then will disappear. Windows® Firewall should now be configured to allow the Design Spooler application.

Design Spooler Support Mode

Starting Design Spooler in Support Mode displays information that can help a support technician diagnose problems. You may be asked by a support technician to start Design Spooler in Support mode. To do this, follow the steps below:

- 1. Make sure your security device is connected.
- 2. To make sure that Design Spooler is currently not running, select Start— Programs—Tajima—DGML By Pulse—Stop Design Spooler. A black window will be displayed for a few seconds and then disappear.
- 3. Next, select Start—Programs—Tajima—DGML By Pulse—Support—Start Design Spooler (Support Mode).

A black window will be displayed with information about the status of the Design Spooler. This window needs to stay open while you are trying to communicate with the spooler during your testing. If the black window closes after a few seconds, make sure your security device is attached. Your security device may need to be programmed to access Design Spooler. You should also make sure that the latest maintenance release of Tajima DG/ML by Pulse Edition Xi is installed.

Once the problem has been resolved you can stop the support mode by clicking the X in the right hand corner of the window. After the black window disappears, you can start Design Spooler normally by selecting Start—Programs—Tajima—DGML By Pulse—Start Design Spooler. You can also just simply restart Windows®. Design Spooler will start automatically when Windows® restarts.

Event Viewer

Design Spooler normally runs as a Windows® service. Windows® services do not usually run silently in the background and do not display messages to the user. The Event Viewer allows you to view error messages and information generated by Windows® services. The Event Viewer is a useful tool when trying to troubleshoot problems with Design Spooler. To display the Event Viewer, select Start—Control Panel—Administrative Tools—Event Viewer. Next, select the Application Log from the list on the left. You may see a number of messages in this view. Look for entries that display DesignSpooler in the Source column. An example of the Event Viewer is displayed below:



Double click on the entry to display more information. In this example, the Design Spooler was unable to enable LAN machine support because another LAN enabled design spooler was found on the same network. The IP address of the computer running the LAN enabled Design Spooler is also displayed. You can only have one LAN enabled Design Spooler on your network.

Using the Ping Command

The Windows® PING command can be used to verify that your computer is correctly connected to the Wireless Router. Follow the steps below to verify the network connection:

- 1. Select Start—Run and type CMD in the run dialog and click OK.
- 2. You should then see a black MS-DOS window. Type the following command at the MS-DOS prompt:

Ping 192.168.1.1

and press the Enter key.

3. The address 192.168.1.1 is the default address of the Wireless Router. If you have configured your network differently than described in this document, the address of the Wireless Router may be different. You should see a screen similar to the one below:



If the connection is successful, you should see Reply from ... messages and all of the packets that were sent should show as received in the Ping statistics. If the packets are not received, recheck the network settings of your computer and try again.